
  
CITY OF CORVALLIS 

MINUTES OF THE PARKS, NATURAL AREAS AND RECREATION BOARD 
JULY 21, 2011 

 
Attendance 
Betty Griffiths, Chair 
Kent Daniels 
Charley Fisher 
Phil Hays 
Jen de-Vries 
Randy Willard  
Lainey Dyer 
Jon Soule 
Joel Hirsch, Council Liaison 
 
Absent/Excused 
Lynda Wolfenbarger, Vice-Chair 
Marc Vomocil 
Alejandra Gonzalez 
Don Williams 
 

 
Staff 
Karen Emery, Director 
Dave Phillips, Parks Ops. Supervisor 
Jackie Rochefort, Planner 
James Mellein, Aquatic Center Supervisor 
Mark Lindgren, Recorder 
 
Visitors 
Mike Gallagher 
Xan Augerot 
Kendra Sharp 
Stewart Wershow 
 

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION 
 

 
Agenda Item 

 
Information  

Only 

 
Held for  

Further  

Review 

 
Recommendations 

II.  Introductions  
       X 

  

III. Approval of Minutes        
       X 

  

IV. Visitor Propositions  
       X 

  

V. Capital Improvement Plan  
Update 

 
        

 Motion passed to approve the proposed CIP Plan. 

VI.  Northwest Natural  
Gas/Corvallis Loop 

         Motion passed that the board support staff proceeding with other city  
staff in planning and negotiating work on the pipeline proposal. 

VII. OSU Game Day Camping at  
Pioneer Park 

         Motion passed that staff should continue exploring the issue. 

VIII. Development of New After  
School Program 

       X   

IX.  Goals Update        X   
X. Staff Reports        X   
XI. Subcommittee Updates          Motion passed to implement Bald Hill Park Mulkey Creek Trail signage

option 2. Motion passed that the dog committee and staff continue explor
adding a $10 fee for dog licenses in the City to specifically offset  
dog-related costs and services in parks. 

XII.  Board Member/City 
Council Liaison Reports 

 
       X 

  

XIII.  Adjournment 
 

 
       X 

 The next regular Parks, Natural Areas and Recreation Board meeting is 
scheduled for 6:30 p.m., September 15, 2011 at the Downtown Fire  
Station Main Meeting Room. 

 
CONTENT OF DISCUSSION 



Minutes of Parks, Natural Areas and Recreation Board  July 21, 2011 Page 2 

 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER:  Chair Betty Griffiths called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.  

 
II. INTRODUCTIONS. Jen de-Vries announced her resignation. New board member Laney Dyer related 

that she moved here from Arizona five years ago; she praised the riverfront. New board member Jon 
Soule related that he has been a resident for fourteen years.  
 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES. 
Griffiths noted the first paragraph under Subcommittee Updates on page 6 of the minutes should read, 
“.. they are working on drafts of a couple brochures.” Daniels asked about the second sentence in the 
Memo of Cooperation section regarding “.. working together for restoration and stewardship on 
properties with common property lines”. He said he could envision instances of working together where 
the three groups had a common interest in different properties but not necessarily have common 
property lines. Director Emery replied that the minutes had properly recorded her statement, but that his 
comments should be added to the minutes. Daniels moved to pass the June 16, 2011 minutes as 
corrected; Hays seconded; motion passed.  
 
Griffiths stated that elections of officers would be held at the August meeting.  
 

IV. VISITORS’ PROPOSITIONS.   
Mike Gallagher testified regarding the pipeline agenda item. He stated he’d lived in the City all his life 
and his family had lived here for four generations; he is a former City planner. He is currently an 
archeologist and cultural resource team leader for the firm Parametrics. He cautioned the proposed 
natural gas route goes through known culturally sensitive areas, though he cannot disclose their 
locations; he advocated that the board take that into consideration in its evaluation of the proposed 
project.  
 
Griffiths asked if he’d contacted NW Natural; he replied that he had not. Phillips said he assumed NW 
Natural had taken this into consideration. Liaison Hirsch said he assumed it would be part of the 
project. Gallagher said that there are many routes that the line can go through, depending on 
involvement of federal and state agencies. State laws require that local jurisdictions may not knowingly 
impact known cultural resources; while cities are not required to survey for them under state law, if a 
project runs into them, then they must be addressed. If a federal agency is involved, they are obligated 
to do surveys. If resources are found, it does not mean that a project would be killed; there are ways to 
avoid, minimize or mitigate impacts; he advocated taking the issue into account. Phillips stated that the 
issue should be addressed in the final easement document; he will look into it. 
 
Soule asked, if the board doesn’t know the location of the sites, whether that puts the board into a 
difficult position; Gallagher replied the route may impact the sites. Soule asked if there were other 
processes that the project must go through that would be highly likely to discover this; Gallagher 
replied that that was true. Daniels asked if surveys were required; Gallagher replied that if there was a 
federal nexus in the project, then it may require surveys. The City has policies on the matter in its 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Planner Rochefort added that whenever the department applies for state grants, it always sends a map 
and a project description to the Oregon State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO). She asked if 
Gallagher was proposing that alternative routes be considered or having a cultural resource specialist be 
put on site; Gallagher replied that he only intended that it be taken into account and addressed in an 
appropriate way. He noted that the sites he was concerned with may not be recorded; archeological sites 
are exempt from the FOI Act. He said one site may have been recorded when the highway bypass was 



Minutes of Parks, Natural Areas and Recreation Board  July 21, 2011 Page 3 

 

built; there may be another as well. Hays asked if the City had an inventory of archeological sites; 
Rochefort replied that the City knew of ones where it has done work and contacted and received 
information from SHPO; the City doesn’t release the information. It does not know about cultural 
resources on all its properties. Gallagher said that when he worked as a City Planner, the City did not 
have the SHPO data on hand. Phillips added that since it would be cost prohibitive to map every City 
property, it does it project by project, and that has worked fairly well. 
 
Xan Augerot, Mary’s River Watershed Council, said she said she was concerned with the pipeline 
route going under the Mary’s River twice, since the group is doing a lot of restoration work in the 
watershed upstream. She related that the Council was very concerned about anything that may affect the 
function and ecological integrity of the river, given its own and grantor investments. She offered to be 
involved in discussions on mitigation and other issues; Emery suggested contacting Dave Phillips, the 
department’s manager for the project. Griffiths added that the board’s purview was the land easement, 
not the water easement. Daniels asked whether the Corps of Engineers would have jurisdiction; Augerot 
replied that the 404 permit would have to go through the Corps.  
 
Stewart Wershow stated that during planning for Berg Park in the 1990’s he was chair of the Martin 
Luther King, Jr. Commission; there were meetings regarding the park’s development. One reason for 
not going forward on development of Berg Park at the time is that there is an old dump there; there was 
concern that gas could potentially move along park irrigation lines, accumulate and explode. That may 
no longer be a concern. He related that ODOT had wanted the City to pay for “archeological curation” 
if artifacts had surfaced during construction of the Susan Wilkins bypass.  
 
Kendra Sharp asked if there were plans in the CIP to upgrade the play structure in Arnold Park. She 
said there is a significant and growing population of families with young children in the neighborhood 
and there is a gap of recreation opportunities for young kids in the area. Griffiths replied that the CIP 
had prioritized playground upgrades due to numerous requests; upgrades are already in the CIP. 
Rochefort added that it is in CIP but not yet funded. Existing Parks are the most difficult projects to 
fund; grants or other funds must be found. When funds become available, staff will then poll neighbors 
to find out what they want.  
 
Daniels added that a 2008 ballot measure failed that would have funded renovation of many city park 
play structures. Liaison Hirsch suggested that Sharp check out the huge new play structure at Garfield 
School.     
 

V.  CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN UPDATE. 
Park Planner Jackie Rochefort presented an update to the Fiscal Year 2013-2017 CIP. She stated that 
the plan accounts for all capital projects that have a cost of more than $10,000 and a life span of more 
than ten years. The CIP subcommittee reviews projects suggested by citizens and staff; as well as 
existing projects. There are many requests from citizens, so years ago the board added additional review 
criteria. Given the financial situation, there were three priorities- projects that meet ADA requirements; 
help maintain facilities that are incurring operation maintenance costs; or could help generate some 
revenue. She highlighted the request process on packet page 21. Hays and Wolfenbarger represented the 
board on the CIP subcommittee this year in reviewing projects. CIP funded projects typically are 
funded by System Development Charges (SDC’s), but these may only fund new development or 
support growth or be listed as SDC-eligible in the Parks and Recreation Facilities Plan. Grants, 
donations, bond measures, property taxes and partnerships also fund projects. She emphasized that 
operating impacts of projects must also be considered.  
 



Minutes of Parks, Natural Areas and Recreation Board  July 21, 2011 Page 4 

 

Hays asked if SDC’s could be used for complete replacement of a existing facility; Rochefort replied 
that funds may not be used to rectify past deficiencies. However, staff would consult a City Attorney 
about some cases where there is new growth near an existing facility. She noted that the Parks and 
Facilities Plan will be updated soon, it must carefully consider what projects should be on the SDC list. 
Griffiths asked about Chepenafa Springs Park; Rochefort noted that it was eligible for SDC’s because 
of all the new town homes in additional growth there. She clarified that Park SDC’s go into one pot; 
they may be used anywhere in the city as long as a project is SDC-eligible. Rochefort said the plan will 
be presented to the CIP Commission in fall.  
 
Rochefort presented the grid in the board’s packet of proposed citizen and staff requests. At Owens 
Farm Natural Area, the existing barn roof has partially collapsed, so there is some urgency to the 
project. The City is working on getting the farm designed as a historic resource and staff are trying to 
apply for a grant; it is proposed to put it in FY13-14. Emery noted that the barn is privately owned 
currently; the city will own it when it is vacated by the current resident. The owner has approved going 
forward on the project.  
 
She related that a proposal for a 12’-wide asphalt multimodal path to connect Crystal Lake Sports Field 
to downtown through the Evanite site has long been in the CIP. Staff will work with Public Works to 
see if an alternate route would work; Rochefort clarified that she should have used the phrase 
“abandoned” railroad tracks relative to the alternate route. Rochefort replied that for many years 
Evanite opposed a public easement through the property, but when an alignment was proposed by 
Evanite, Planning had concerns about its location being too close to a riparian area, and proposed an 
alternate route that Evanite then opposed. 
 
Regarding the request for constructing two bocce ball courts at Chintimini Park, she stated that it can be 
constructed through volunteers, but is less than $10,000 and so doesn’t qualify for the CIP, though it is 
a good idea. 
 
Regarding improving trail surfaces, especially Bald Hill and Chip Ross, she stated that there are many 
trails throughout the system that need work, so there was discussion about doing different trails each 
year. Hays highlighted trails in orange on the map that were in poor shape. Rochefort said an inventory 
is needed; a subcommittee recommendation could prioritize which trail should be improved and when. 
Griffiths noted that there were many trails in the system and asked whether all were needed; Rochefort 
said the subcommittee could decide that.  
 
Regarding the citizen proposal to extend the boardwalk at Mary’s River Natural Area across Brooklane 
Drive and up to the proposed to Brooklane subdivision, she said that is not something the City would 
do. As part of the Brooklane plan, there is a proposed path to take people from that development to a 
safe crossing of Brooklane to the natural area. 
 
There was a request for more restrooms, especially at the riverfront and the downtown area, and to keep 
them open year-round. She said that if we can’t support it operationally, then we can’t do it. She 
suggested that at some point there could be a discussion on whether there should be restroom support 
for year-round park users; Griffiths suggested a subcommittee. Rochefort said there is a new restroom 
at the new transit center on 5th Street. Daniels added that there is an issue of restrooms for homeless in 
the downtown; it is a larger City issue than just being a Parks issue; Parks shouldn’t be the only 
department financially responsible. Griffiths replied that the transit center restroom was intended for 
that use.  
 



Minutes of Parks, Natural Areas and Recreation Board  July 21, 2011 Page 5 

 

There was a proposal to acquire land and build a park at the corner of Walnut and Hummingbird; she 
said it was evaluated but it is not clear that that is the most appropriate parcel for a park, though the 
Facilities Plan acknowledges the need for a park in that area; she suggested reevaluating it during the 
update of the Facilities Plan. Rochefort explained it is part of a subdivision; the proposal is to buy one 
or two lots; it doesn’t quite meet the criteria and there are natural features to consider. Emery added that 
the school is quite close and it is not a through street for cars. 
 
There is a request to pave the path between 17th Place and the cul-de-sac; however, it is not park 
property. However, she said, it opened a discussion regarding improving paths within parks for ADA 
access; the subcommittee suggested doing an inventory, prioritizing and taking a phased approach. 
 
There was a request for a building expansion at the Parks and Rec Administration Building to expand 
the conference room with a kitchen and rest room in order to provide a rentable space and increase 
revenue; however, it would be so costly that it would take a long time to recover costs.  
 
She highlighted a citizen request tonight to upgrade playgrounds; she highlighted the failed bond 
measure; the department would like all parks to be ADA accessible. She said that the department would 
work through the backlog as it could. The plan in the CIP is to upgrade Tunison Park; a matching grant 
of $50,000 from the state will be matched with funds, volunteer labor, and donations from Rotary and 
Kiwanis. She praised Chrissy Bevens’ work on the grant applications. 
 
There was a request to continue projects in the approved master plan for the Avery Park Rose garden; 
some paving work remains to be done. The project so far has increased revenue; an arbor or other 
covering of the plaza there would expand the season; the proposal is to phase that in. 
 
There was a request for a community garden at Chepenafa Springs Park and a number of other areas; a 
parks community garden master plan is underway and those proposals will be included in the CIP when 
the plan is complete. 
 
There was a request for a covered play area, but it is difficult to fund; the best test location may be at 
Tunison Park.   
 
There was a request to resurface and light tennis courts; someone was hired to make improvements to 
the Lincoln tennis court, including a power wash, re-stain, re-stripe, and a new bench and net. Staff will 
look into lighting; it could be put into a CIP “out” year. The state does not consider it as broad-based a 
sport as others, so it is difficult to get grants for it.  
 
There was a request to improve ADA river access. She said that is an adopted part of the North 
Riverfront Plan and the City is waiting to hear from ODOT; it is placed in an out year and it can be 
moved if necessary. 
 
There is a request for a water fountain at Village Green; there is already one there. Whenever a 
restroom is installed, a water fountain is put in, as well. 
 
Due to increased maintenance needs, there is a proposal to re-roof Gaylord House at 7th and Tyler 
Streets, a historic structure within the park. Grants and other sources will be sought in order to prevent 
further deterioration. Daniels noted the current roof was constructed of hand cut shakes. Rochefort said 
staff will work with members of the community to determine the best way to re-roof it. Emery said it is 
probably required to replace it with the same type roofing material. Daniels suggested consideration of 
what to do with the building to generate revenue.  



Minutes of Parks, Natural Areas and Recreation Board  July 21, 2011 Page 6 

 

 
Rochefort stated that there was a request for a community gym; while there isn’t a funding source, it 
was felt to be important enough to be included as a placeholder for when funding is found. It would 
provide revenue and year-round activity. It is possible it could be grown into a community center. 
Emery related that there have been many requests for a gym; the current Facilities Plan cites a need for 
one. During consideration of adding a second center to the Senior Center it was found that due to 
operation costs, it was cheaper to simply expand one facility. 
 
There was a request to pave the Pioneer Park parking lot; it would help generate revenue. 
 
She highlighted a set of projects that were considered viable but not ready to include in the CIP, and 
were placed on a Pending list. The list included system wide restrooms; sand volleyball courts (perhaps 
a complex at Avery Park); and a potable water line at CLSF in a county section. Hays said the City is 
currently supplying water to several facilities outside the City; Rochefort replied that options include 
annexing the site, asking the City to provide water to an adjacent property owner, or putting in 
necessary infrastructure. There needs to be consideration of whether it is worth the investment 
financially or politically. Another Pending project is a lighted Osborne Aquatic Center marquee sign on 
the grassy area outside; Griffiths said she and neighbors would have adamant objections and it was not 
worthwhile for marketing; Rochefort said the subcommittee agreed.  
 
There was a request to purchase Corvallis Auction Yard land for a swimming pool and/or a gym; she 
said it was not clear that it was for sale. There was a request for a community labyrinth at Shawala 
Point; she said the proposal needed further evaluation.  
 
There was a request to rebuild the BMX track for various levels; she said that there are liability, 
floodplain, Greenway and other concerns. Willard asked if the BMX was more dangerous than the 
skateboard park; Rochefort explained that the BMX track jumps are continually fashioned by 
individuals and they can be very dangerous. Daniels highlighted the need for a master plan for the area; 
Rochefort stated that that was scheduled for fall. 
 
Griffiths suggested pushing the Owens Farm proposal up to FY12-13, since there were State Parks and 
Rec funds available for historic structures; Rochefort replied that she cannot put it in the first year 
unless there is a dedicated funding source; however, she’ll see what she can do to get a special 
dispensation from the City Manager. Griffiths emphasized it was an urgent situation. Emery said the 
first step to getting such a state grant is getting the property listed on the historic register.  
 
Rochefort highlighted the list of existing projects and sought input on whether any project timelines 
needed to be adjusted. Soule asked which projects were funded; Rochefort responded that the only 
funded projects were the Avery Park restroom doors (they are out to bid), the Shooting Star Trail 
improvements, and Tunison Park improvements. Emery added that some funds were dedicated to 
purchase of lands. Rochefort noted that the SDC funds balance recently went from a negative figure to 
about $1 million; they are often used in matching grants. 
 
Willard moved and Hays seconded to approve the proposed CIP plan; motion passed unanimously. 
 

VI.  NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS/CORVALLIS LOOP. 
Park Operations Specialist Dave Phillips highlighted the staff report map of the proposed pipeline route 
from Berg Park to the OSU campus Energy Center. It is proposed to go across Berg Park and private 
property, under the Willamette River and continuing underground until it gets to Pioneer Park, where it 
surfaces and turns in the parking lot, then it goes back underground under Mary’s River, under the top 



Minutes of Parks, Natural Areas and Recreation Board  July 21, 2011 Page 7 

 

of Avery Park, then back under Mary’s River as it goes west, then down the south side of Philomath 
Boulevard to the Energy Center, which plans to burn the gas to produce steam to provide electricity.  
 
He said Northwest Natural was requesting easements on four Park parcels. According to construction 
plans, there are three alternative paths, with one preferred route. The route underwent a matrix to 
determine the most feasible alternatives; the preferred alignment was the most feasible in all respects 
but cost; he assumed that there was a slightly less expensive alternative. The project will start at the 
gate station in Albany, go through rural Albany, and proceed along Highway 34 to Berg Natural Area. 
It will impact about 7.5 acres of City property; a number of permits will be required. NW Natural is 
currently writing the easement language; he said he was working with City attorneys to determine 
worth to the City and decide whether to recommend that the City Council should proceed with 
negotiations. He related that the company’s engineering department was unable to attend this meeting 
but would be interested in attending a future meeting, if desired.  
 
Hays asked about construction details; Phillips replied that most of the section through Berg Park would 
be accompanied by a 5 by 5’ open trench “working space”, about 1,800 feet in Berg Park. That would 
go through the agricultural area that the City leases to JBD Farms; NW Natural would compensate for 
one-time disturbance to cropland resulting in loss of agricultural revenue. Hays asked for information 
on the total width of the working area; Phillips replied the construction specs were not yet complete. 
Hays said he was concerned with details of the pipeline emerging from the ground in Pioneer Park; 
Phillips said there could be a 250 square foot working space there (it is still uncertain); from there, there 
would be an underground bore under Avery Park and Mary’s River. Currently, no disturbance of topsoil 
is contemplated at Avery Park. The term “working space” refers to a temporary easement that NW 
Natural sought. Phillips noted the route would go under Shawala Point, with no devices above ground 
in any of the parks. Hays asked how much the City would be reimbursed; Phillip replied the City would 
seek as much as it could.  
 
Daniels asked about the directional bore process; Rochefort noted the CSO at the Riverfront was a 
directional bore project. Daniels asked about impact on tree root structures; Phillips replied that the pipe 
depth on construction drawings ranges from 40-100’; the company told him there would be many 
irregularities and that they would make adjustments along the way. Daniels asked whether there could 
be recurring payments over time (that would create a significant revenue stream) and whether Public 
Works would be charging for the right of way along 35th Street; Phillips replied that this will be part of 
his analysis. Griffiths suggested discussing it with Public Works; Phillips said he had been doing so 
with Public Works’ franchise specialist. Daniels noted that the proposed line alignment does go through 
the previous dumpsite and gas leaks and explosions often follow pipelines underground. Griffiths asked 
if proposed pipe standards and depths were industry standard; Phillips replied that they were; he’d 
hoped a company representative could attend tonight. 
 
Willard asked about earthquake safety. Emery said Phillips would email out an updated staff report. 
Soule asked if it was a dedicated line for the Energy Center; Phillips replied that it was, though it could 
probably be tapped into and extended for additional customers. He has not had discussions with OSU 
yet. Soule noted his company, a heavy natural gas user, has heard that Corvallis is underserved by 
natural gas.  
 
Griffiths asked what was asked of the board; Phillips said staff would like the board’s blessing to 
proceed to consider the project. Emery added that after more questions were answered, the Council 
would also review and give direction. Daniels asked where revenue would go; he said it should benefit 
Parks; it shouldn’t go into the General Fund.  
 



Minutes of Parks, Natural Areas and Recreation Board  July 21, 2011 Page 8 

 

Griffiths said NW Natural said it wanted to proceed in fall; Phillips noted that timeframe seemed 
ambitious. Griffiths asked about the Corps of Engineers process; Phillips said NW Natural were not 
close to getting landowner signatures yet. Griffiths asked if Department of State Lands had any say; 
Phillips replied that they did; NW Natural had to do a wetland delineation. Rochefort added that NW 
Natural also must address floodway issues.  
 
Hays highlighted wording from the memo, “There will be no detectible operating characteristics from 
the completed bore project”; Phillips clarified that it meant that there would be nothing above ground to 
see after the project was completed. Hays highlighted wording “..a minimum of  four feet of native 
material”; Phillips replied that that refers to whatever materials DSL tells the company must be put back 
in the trench; basically, what is there now. It could be as close to the surface as four feet in some places. 
Phillips said it is not clear from the construction drawings regarding the depth; he said he can ask for 
more information. It will be a minimum of 15’ under the riverbed. Griffiths asked why the company 
didn’t simply use bridges in crossing rivers; Phillips replied that he assumed it was cheaper to do a 
directional bore.  
 
Daniels moved that the board support staff proceeding with other city staff in planning and negotiating 
work on the pipeline proposal (in exploring options and getting more information); Hays seconded.  
Phillips will send out information to address concerns. Willard said he was concerned that it wouldn’t 
get a cost benefit analysis before the next meeting. Phillips said the process was moving quickly; Emery 
said staff would keep the board updated. Griffiths said it was important enough that PNARB discuss it 
in a meeting. Soule asked about the board’s role in the process; Emery replied that PNARB had an 
advisory role. Phillips said this was a real property matter, so there are legal issues involved. Liaison 
Hirsch said it sounded like staff were moving forward carefully and slowly. Emery clarified that 
Phillips was working with Public Works, City attorneys and has given City Council a brief overview. 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 

VII. OSU GAME DAY CAMPING AT PIONEER PARK.   
Park Operations Specialist Dave Phillips related that Pioneer Park has long been used for adult softball. 
Recently it has been providing about 170 fee parking spaces for OSU home football games. He said the 
Director proposed expanding the lot to accommodate RV parking spaces. He said the lot is gravel and 
poorly drained; the project could improve drainage, increase parking, and/or provide RV parking 
spaces. The fairground site charges about $50 or $60 per night. He said if there were ten RV spots in 
lieu of ten parking spaces, it could represent $3,000 additional annual revenues. He said gravel and 
volunteer labor was available and he would like the project to go forward in fall. There is potential to 
increase parking in general. He said potential issues include a camping issue (only the City Manager 
can approve camping; a permit process would be needed; there is a Transient Room Tax, etc. If the 
pipeline surfaces there, then he would be interested in getting improvements to the lot. He said that he 
will provide construction details in the future and sought input on whether to proceed. 
 
Hays said the State pays the County so much per RV site per year at its Salmonberry site; Rochefort 
replied the city is not eligible for that. Willard asked whether the better-situated Guaranty RV site off 
Brooklane would overshadow it; Emery said the Avery and Pioneer lots are already being fully utilized 
by cars. Willard said Guaranty already serves RV’s and is still not full; he advocated more analysis; 
Phillips agreed more analysis was needed. Griffiths noted that there was also camping at the 
fairgrounds. Willard asked whether there had been consideration of using Starker Arts Park parking lot; 
Phillips said it was a good idea if needed in the future. Hays asked whether ODOT would be OK with 
RV’s going in and out of the Pioneer lot; Phillips will check. Hays moved and Willard seconded that 
staff should continue to explore the issue; motion passed.   
 



Minutes of Parks, Natural Areas and Recreation Board  July 21, 2011 Page 9 

 

VIII.  DEVELOPMENT OF NEW AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAM.  
Aquatic Supervisor James Mellein related the school district recently approved a new calendar for all 
schools; the new schedule includes late starts on Wednesday mornings and early release on Fridays for 
all elementary students and six through eighth graders at Franklin. Since some parents were concerned 
with impacts on working families, the department is partnering with the district to identify safe, 
educational recreational opportunities for affected children, especially elementary school-age children. 
The program, named “Funtastic Fridays”, is a curriculum-based education and recreation program 
including swimming lessons, building robots, sports-related programs, and arts and crafts programs. 
The early release on Fridays is at 1:45 p.m.; the program would run from 2:00 to 5:30 p.m.  
 
Aquatic education and recreation opportunities would include swimming lessons, water safety, and 
“Longfellows Whales Tales”, which teaches kids basic water safety knowledge. He highlighted the 
Sciensational Program, which combines science, art and literature, and the Outdoor Seekers program, 
which teaches about the outdoors in a structured environment. Staff are working on a pricing structure 
to ensure affordability as well as cost recovery; registration can be done at any recreation center and 
online.  
 
Hays asked how to get kids from schools to Osborn; Mellein replied that the school district already has 
a program to get elementary school kids to Linus Pauling Middle School. Mellein explained that only 
the swimming and aquatic education programs would be held at Osborn; others would be held 
elsewhere. 
 

IX.  GOALS UPDATE.  Discussion postponed. 
 

X.  STAFF REPORTS.   
Emery related the consultant running the City Manager recruitment process had narrowed the field to 
six candidates.  
 

XI.  SUBCOMMITTEE UPDATES.   
Griffiths highlighted items from the Dog subcommittee minutes in the packet, including sign options 
for Bald Hill Park. Part of that park is under City jurisdiction and part of it County. There is a 
committee proposal to put “NO Dogs” or “Dogs on leash” signs on the City portion and ask the county 
to designate “No Dogs” on its Mulkey Creek portion. Phillips said there is a seven-acre official off-
leash area at Bald Hill; everything else is designated as on-leash. Rochefort related the dog community 
had asked that a sign be designed that stands out. Daniels said option #2 was the right thing to do; he 
said he uses those trails a lot and advocated no dogs past the connector to Bald Hill. It makes sense that 
there be a loop that includes the off-leash area. 
 
Willard moved to implement Bald Hill Park Mulkey Creek Trail signage option 2 (for the portion of the 
path that connects back to the barn (about 0.8 miles) to be signed as “Dogs on Leash” and the remainder 
of the trail, under an easement agreement between the County and the owner of Bald Hill Farm, to be 
signed as “No Dogs Allowed”; Daniels seconded; motion passed.  
 
Griffiths asked for direction from the board to explore a ten-dollar addition for dog license fees in 
addition to what the county charges to specifically offset dog-related costs and services in parks (the 
funds would go directly to Parks and Rec). Daniels moved that the dog committee and staff continue 
exploring adding a $10 fee for dog licenses in the City to specifically offset dog-related costs and 
services in parks (in addition to what the County charges); Soule seconded; motion passed.  
 
Griffiths said the dog brochures were still in draft form and encouraged further comments. 



Minutes of Parks, Natural Areas and Recreation Board  July 21, 2011 Page 10 

 

 
XII.  BOARD MEMBER/CITY COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS.   

Hirsch related that he’d failed to convince the Council to act on the board’s recommendation to not 
move the Osborn Aquatic Center fees up. He felt the Council had chosen to instead act on staff’s 
counsel. Griffiths related that there had been excellent testimony to support PNARB’s position. 
 
An executive session started at 8:42. 
 

XIII.  ADJOURNMENT: Meeting adjourned at 8:48 p.m.   


